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—Aerial Photograph of Carsewell














































PLATE §

F16. 9.—Aerial Photograph of Riccarton


























































It is particularly interesting to note that according to
Dickson the old Scots plough was a swing-plough, which “is
raised out of the ground by pressing upon the handles, which
raises the forepart of the plough.” # On the other hand there
was certainly to be found, albeit of more recent provenance, a
Scots wheel-plough.®® This latter had a normally curved
mouldboard and feathered sock: that is to say an assymetrical
sock with a wing (feather) protruding on one side.

Dickson himself constantly recommended an assymetrical
sock with a feather on the right-hand side, although this was
not a novelty. In stony terrain, however, the symmetrical sock
was more satisfactory.

The harness was normally attached by an ordinary hook,
but, strangely enough, even at that time there were several
more developed forms of different thickness and breadth, which
had not however been generally adopted.

Henry Home, Lord Kames, supplements Dickson’s descrip-
tion of the old Scots plough in his The Gentleman Farmer (1776).
He was born in 1696 in Berwickshire, a county in which this
type of plough still survived in 1794.% According to Home the
plough was large and heavy, some 13 feet in length, whilst
the head and sock togcther measured 4 feet. The sock lacked
both a fin and a feather. But the plough had its advantages:
it turned over the soil very well and the long handles enabled
the driver to control it casily. The long head took a firm grip
of the ground, and the weight of the implement prevented
stones from pushing it out of the furrow. One drawback, how-
ever, was that its weight demanded many oxen, since the head
and the mouldboard were too long, and thus increased the
friction. The mouldboard in particular was set at too sharp
an angle to the sock, instead of gradually sweeping outwards.
About 1800 it would seem that the mouldboard was becoming
more commonly strengthened with a metal plate.>*

The number of animals in the draught team seems to have
varied in the 1790’s from county to county. Thus in Aberdeen-
shire it was still drawn by eight to twelve oxen, yoked two and
two, although the author of the report on that county thought
this absurd since two horses would suffice in the light soil.®3
In Perthshire about 1780 it was customary to use four oxen
and two horses, or four horses and two oxen °® and this practice
was reported from the Carse of Gowrie in 1794.%7 In Ross in
1810 six to eight animals were still used, indiscriminately
mixed, % whilst in the two counties of Galloway (Kirkcudbright
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PLATE I

Fic. 4.—Inverness-shire Plough from the Fort William Museum









PLATE 2

F1c. 5.—Sock and Coulter from South Uist from Hamburg Museum
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